






 

Minutes of Joint Work/Study Session  1          February 17, 2021 

 

 
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

CITY COUNCIL, PLANNING COMMISSION, AND  
RECREATION COMMISSION 
JOINT WORK/STUDY SESSION 

 
 
 
Joint Work/Study Session Wednesday, February 17, 2021      10:00 AM 

 
Meeting called to order by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia at 10:05 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL CITY COUNCIL 
Council Members Present: Mayor Rolando Castro, Mayor Pro Tem Jesus 

Mendoza, and Council Members Jose Alonso, Joseph 
Riofrio, and Oscar Rosales 

 
Council Members Absent:    None 
 
ROLL CALL PLANNING COMMISSION 
Commissioners Present:  Vice Chairperson Jose Gutierrez, Commissioners 

Libertad Lopez, Joshua Perez, Jessica Sanchez, and 
Jonathan Leiva-Castillo 

 
Commissioners Absent:  Chairperson Juan Luna 
 
ROLL CALL RECREATION COMMISSION 
Commissioners Present:  Chairperson Jesus Mendoza, Commissioners Antonio 

Pizano, Jessica Sanchez, and Josue Urias  
 
Commissioners Absent:  Vice Chairperson Paul Ochoa and Commissioner 

Kevin Romero 
 
Flag Salute led by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia. 
 
WORK/STUDY SESSION 
 
1. AB 1825 – Sexual Harassment Prevention Training 

 

                                      
 

 



 

Minutes of Joint Work/Study Session  2          February 17, 2021 

Steven Crass with Wanger, Jones, & Helsley PC provided the sexual harassment 
prevention training. 
 
Discussion was held throughout the training. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None offered. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Consensus was reached to adjourn the work/study session at 12:05 p.m. 
 
_______________________________   
Rolando Castro, Mayor      
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera, City Clerk 



 

Minutes of Joint Work/Study Session  1          March 3, 2021 

 

 
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

CITY COUNCIL, PLANNING COMMISSION, AND  
RECREATION COMMISSION 
JOINT WORK/STUDY SESSION 

 
 
 
Joint Work/Study Session Wednesday, March 3, 2021      10:00 AM 

 
Meeting called to order by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia at 10:05 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL CITY COUNCIL 
Council Members Present: Mayor Rolando Castro, Mayor Pro Tem Jesus 

Mendoza, and Council Members Jose Alonso, Joseph 
Riofrio, and Oscar Rosales 

 
Council Members Absent:    None 
 
ROLL CALL PLANNING COMMISSION 
Commissioners Present:  Vice Chairperson Jose Gutierrez, Commissioners 

Joshua Perez, Jessica Sanchez, and Jonathan Leiva-
Castillo 

 
Commissioners Absent:  Chairperson Juan Luna and Commission Libertad 

Lopez 
 
ROLL CALL RECREATION COMMISSION 
Commissioners Present:  Chairperson Jesus Mendoza, Commissioners Antonio 

Pizano, Kevin Romero, Jessica Sanchez, and Josue 
Urias  

 
Commissioners Absent:  Vice Chairperson Paul Ochoa  
 
Flag Salute led by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia. 
 
 
 
 

                                      
 

 



 

Minutes of Joint Work/Study Session  2          March 3, 2021 

WORK/STUDY SESSION 
 
1. AB 1234 – Ethics Training 

 
City Attorney Kinsey provided the ethics training. 
 
Discussion was held throughout the training. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None offered. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Consensus was reached to adjourn the work/study session at 12:01 p.m. 
 
_______________________________   
Rolando Castro, Mayor      
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera, City Clerk 



 

Recreation Commission Meeting          1    March 4, 2021 

 
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

REGULAR RECREATION COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

 
Regular Meeting     Thursday, March 4, 2021  12:00 p.m. 

 
Meeting called to order by Chairperson Mendoza at 12:03 p.m.  
  
Roll Call 
 
Commissioners Present:  Chairperson Jesus Mendoza, Commissioners 

Antonio Pizano, Jessica Sanchez, Kevin Romero, 
and Josue Urias (at 12:05 p.m.) 

 
Commissioners Absent:    Vice-Chairperson Paul Ochoa 
 
Flag Salute led by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia 
 
FINALIZE THE AGENDA 
 
1. Adjustments to Agenda. 

 
2. Adoption of final Agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Romero to adopt the agenda, seconded by 
Commissioner Pizano; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Ochoa and Urias). 
 
CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
 
None offered. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING READING  
 
1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting of February, 2021. 
 
2. Notice of waiving the reading of all resolutions introduced and/or adopted under 

this agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Pizano to approve items 1 and 2, seconded  
by Commissioner Romero; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Ochoa and  
Urias). 
 
 
 

 



 

Recreation Commission Meeting          2    March 4, 2021 

BUSINESS 
 
1. Commission discussion and consideration of sponsorship opportunities for the 

baseball and soccer fields at Rojas-Pierce Park. 
 
Chairperson Mendoza introduced the item and City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia summarized 
the report. 
 
Discussion was held on the information provided and direction was provided to staff 
regarding the sponsorship opportunities. 
 
STAFF REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
Nothing to report. 
 
RECREATION COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioner Romero commented on youth football. 
 
Commissioner Urias inquired about the status of the slide and basketball net repairs at 
Rojas-Pierce Park. 
 
Chairperson Mendoza thanked the Commissioners for their work. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
At the hour of 1:11 p.m., with no more business to be brought before the Commission, a 
motion for adjournment was made by Commissioner Romero, with a second by 
Commissioner Urias; unanimously approved (5 ayes, absent: Ochoa). 
 
_______________________________   
Jesus Mendoza, Chairperson     
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
 

 



1 

 

AGENDA IT EM – ST AFF REPORT  

TO: CHAIRPERSON AND MEMBERS OF THE RECREATION COMMISSION 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR EXCLUSIVE USE OF CITY FACILITIES 

DATE: APRIL 1, 2021 

______________________________________________________________________________________  

ISSUE 
Shall the Recreation Commission grant the exclusive use permit for Mendota Youth Recreation 
for the use of the Benny Mares Baseball Field? 
 
BACKGROUND 
In early March, two organizations (Mendota Youth Recreation and Westside Youth Inc.) 
submitted facility use applications for the use of the Benny Mares Baseball field. Both 
applications requested the use of the field on conflicting days. At its March 23rd regular meeting, 
the City Council directed staff to bring forth the applications to the Recreation Commission at its 
next regular meeting so that the Commission can work with both organizations to establish a 
schedule that is acceptable to all. 
 
Since then, Westside Youth Inc. contacted staff and requested to rescind their application. As 
such, the Commission will only be considering the application submitted by Mendota Youth 
Recreation (MYR) which is attached. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The application received from MYR requests the use of the Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field for 
youth baseball. MYR is requesting to use the baseball field Tuesdays and Thursdays from 4p.m.-
9 p.m. and on Saturday from 9a.m.-5p.m. They are not charging an entry fee and plan to use the 
concession stand and lights, when necessary. 
 
In regard to the guidance provided by the California Department of Public Health relating to 
outdoor youth sports, baseball is considered an “Outdoor Moderate-Contact Sport” and is 
permitted when the county is in the red tier. Currently, Fresno County is in the purple tier and 
baseball is not permitted under the state’s guidelines. When the sport is permitted, organizations 
must abide by the COVID-19 prevention requirements that are contained within the State’s 
guidelines and as the local jurisdiction requires. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
As attached, the fees charged would only be those related to the concession stand use, which 
would be $10 for every half day, to be paid before the organization starts use of the field. In 
addition, there will need to be an administrative security deposit paid by the organization (before 
its respective use of the field) of $250, which is refundable once their use ceases and it is 
confirmed that the facilities are intact in their original state. 
 
 



2 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Commission approve the use of the Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field as 
requested in the attached application with the following conditions: 
 

1. Mendota Youth Recreation utilize the baseball field on the days and times that have been 
outlined in the application and/or agreed to at the meeting; and 

2. MYR provide the city with any updates to its schedule, including any changes that occur 
mid-season that cause the field to be un-used when it was previously declared it would be 
used; and 

3. MYR inform City Hall in advance of the specific days and time they will be using the 
concession stand; and 

4. MYR pay the necessary fees and/or deposits, based on their submitted schedules, before 
beginning use of the field, as well as providing proof of insurance and any other 
information the City Manager may request; and 

5. MYR maintain the field based on their use and immediately report any observed 
problems, whether or not caused directly by their use, to the Director of Public Works or 
his designee; and 

6. Any additional conditions that the Commission requires. 











 

Fees for the Use of the Benny Mares Sr. Baseball Field 

Fee Type Fee for Residents Fee for Non-
Residents 

Use of Field* (Private Party) $25.00 per half day† $50.00 per half day† 

Use of Field* (Non-profit, Youth) No Cost $25.00 per half day† 

Cleaning Deposit (only required 
for private party; fully 

refundable) 

$100.00 $200.00 

Lights (Private Party) $20.00 per hour $20.00 per hour 

Lights (Non-profit, Youth) No Cost $20.00 per hour 

Concession Stand (Private 
Party) 

$25.00 per half day† $25.00 per half day† 

Concession Stand (Non-profit, 
Youth) 

$10.00 per half day† $10.00 per half day† 

*Includes use of the scoreboard, electricity, and restrooms.

†A half day is either 7:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. or 3:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. A party 
can rent out both half days if the whole day is needed. 


	4-1-21 Recreation Commission Agenda
	2-17-21 Special City Council Meeting Minutes
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	Meeting called to order by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia at 10:05 a.m.

	ROLL CALL CITY COUNCIL
	ROLL CALL PLANNING COMMISSION

	3-3-21 Special City Council Meeting Minutes
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	Meeting called to order by City Clerk Cabrera-Garcia at 10:05 a.m.

	ROLL CALL CITY COUNCIL
	ROLL CALL PLANNING COMMISSION

	3-4-21 Recreation Commission Minutes
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	REGULAR RECREATION COMMISSION MEETING
	Meeting called to order by Chairperson Mendoza at 12:03 p.m.

	Roll Call

	MYR App
	Pages from Current Baseball Field Fees (Final)



